
 
 

City of Lino Lakes 
Environmental Board Meeting 

 
February 22, 2017 

6:30 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
   5:30 p.m. Meeting Earth Day for Preparation 
 
 

1. Call to Order   
 

2. Swearing In of New & Returning Members – Shawn Holmes, Alex Schwartz, Liz 
Kaufenberg 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
4. Approval of Minutes   

 
5. Open Mike  

 
6. Action Items 

 
A.  Bald Eagle Erectors 

    
7. Discussion Items 

 
A.  Paul Gardner, free curbside clothing & home goods recycling program 
B.  Jon Klapperich (Waste Wise) and Amy Ulbricht (Anoka County), Business 

Recycling in Lino Lakes 
         C.  Event Dates 

D.  Earth Day 
 

7.  Adjourn  



 

DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 

CITY OF LINO LAKES 
ENVIRONMENTAL BOARD MINUTES 

 
 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 
Ms. Klebba called the Lino Lakes Environmental Board meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. on 
January 25, 2017. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   
  

 ADDED:  Voting in Chair and Vice Chair 
 
 Ms. Andrzejewski nominated Mr. Heiskary as Chair and Ms. Klebba as Vice Chair.  Ms. 

Kaufenberg seconded the nomination.  All in favor. 
 
 Ms. Andrzejewski made a MOTION to approve the Agenda with the changes. Ms. 

Kaufenberg seconded motion.  Motion carried 4- 0. 
 
 ADDED: Mr. Asleson asked if the below items could be added: 
  D.   Arbor Day 
  E.    Earth Day  
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
 December 21, 2016 
 

Mr. Sullivan made a MOTION to approve the December 21, 2016 Meeting Minutes.  
Motion was seconded by Ms. Andrzejewski.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

  
 DATE    :  January 25, 2017 
 TIME STARTED  :  6:31 P.M. 
 TIME ENDED  :  7:51 P.M. 
 MEMBERS PRESENT :  Paula Andrzejewski, Liz Kaufenberg, Nancie 

Klebba, John Sullivan, Alex Schwartz 
MEMBERS ABSENT :  Steve Heiskary 
STAFF PRESENT  :  Marty Asleson, Nan Jin 



 

DRAFT MINUTES 

4. OPEN MIKE 
 
Declared Open Mike at 6:34 p.m. 
 
Closed Open Mike at 6:35 p.m.   
 

5. ACTION ITEMS 
 
A. Erickson Estates, 63 White Pine Road, Preliminary  

 
The applicant has submitted a land use application for Comprehensive Plan 
amendment. The proposed development is a 2 lot single family residential subdivision     
located at the northwest quadrant of White Pine Road and Baldwin Lake Road. The 
development contain on 4.38 gross acre parcel and is Erickson Estates. 
 
The proposal is a Comprehensive Plan Amendment because the City will need to 
amend the Future Land Use Map from Urban Reserve to Low Density Residential. 
The proposal is a rezoning because the land would need to change from R, Rural to 
R-1X, and single Family Executive. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The four-acre site contains a single-family home connected to public water and 
sewer, area has wetlands, pond, mowed grassland, and tree coverage.   Per the 
Subsurface Geotechnical Assessment, groundwater was not encountered in the 
boreholes. The Rice Creek Chain of Lakes Regional Park Reserve abuts the property 
to the north. 
 
Concerning the Comprehensive Plan, Erickson Estates is consistent with the goals 
and policies of the comprehensive plan, resource management, land use, housing, 
transportation and utilities.   
 
The Resource Management System Plan identifies the following in the area: 

• Proposed Trail 
• Greenway system connectivity 

       
A future trail north south through the Regional Park is indicated on the future park plan 
Resource Management Plan.  Erickson Estates does not negatively impact these  
plans. 

 
The greenway corridor extends into the north portion of the parcel incorporating the                  
wetland and floodplain areas.  This corridor will be preserved with a conservation 
easement. 

 
 
 



 

DRAFT MINUTES 

Density and Land Area Calculations  
 
Comments: The area of the wetland buffer conservation easement shall be provided. 
 
Storm Water Management and Erosion and Sediment Control 
 
No storm water management facilities are proposed.  The City Engineer will review 
and comment on the plan. 

  
Tree Preservation 
 
Currently there are 16 trees proposed for removal.  Since these trees are located within 
the BUA and are outside of the ESA, no tree mitigation is required. 
 
Mr. Asleson would like to add protection of the oak trees in the area from construction.   
 
Landscaping 

 
No boulevard trees or open space landscaping are required 

 
Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) 

 
An Environmental Assessment Worksheet is not mandated.   

 
Wetlands 

 
According to the report prepared by Kjolhaug Environmental Services Company, Inc, 
two wetlands were identified on the subject site. Per the preliminary plat, the total 
combined wetland area is 0.21 acres.  

 
The site is located within the RCWD Wetland Management Corridor. Because of this 
location, a conservation easement covering an average 50 foot wide wetland buffer is 
required along the northern wetland. 

 
Shoreland Management Overlay 

 
The site is located in a Shoreland Management Overlay district. Baldwin Lake is a 
classified as a Recreational Lake.  A setback of 150 feet from the OHWL is required 
for all primary and accessory structures.  Impervious surface coverage of 30% applies 
to all lots within the overlay district.  The 150 foot setback from the OHWL does not 
encroach onto Lot 1 or Lot 2 of the proposed development so is not an issue. 
Impervious surface coverage will be reviewed with the building permit but given the 
large size parcels, impervious coverage should not be an issue. 
 
 
 



 

DRAFT MINUTES 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
Erickson Estates will preserve open space and enhance the ecological system by 
dedicating a conservation easement over the wetland management/greenway corridor.  
Park dedication fees will be collected.  Right-of-way will be platted and drainage and 
utility easements will be dedicated to preserve a corridor to extend public utilities in 
upon future development. 
 
Rare and Unique Features 
 
There are no rare and/or unique feature records on this site. 
 
Ms. Kaufenberg would like to see signage on the buffer wetland. 
 
Ms. Andrzejewski and Mr. Schwartz both would like to see a future proposed trail map 
and the location of the trail.  
 
Mr. Asleson made the suggestion that if any oak trees out of the construction area are 
wounded that measures are taken to control oak wilt.  
 
Mr. Schwartz made a Motion to approve the preliminary plat with the Environmental 
board recommendations.  Motion seconded by Ms. Kaufenberg.  Motion passed 5-0. 

 
6. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
A. Goals/2017 Revision Review  
 

2017 Environmental Board Goals were discussed at the November 30, 2016 meeting.  
Revised at the December 11, 2016 Environmental Board meeting and will be 
presented at the City Council Work session on February 6, 2017  

   
B. Recycling Updates – Nan Jia 

 
Ms. Jia went over Commercial Recycling Mandate which states that as of January 1, 
2016 any business in the seven-county metro area that generates four cubic yards of 
more of solid waste per week must begin recline at least three materials, such as 
paper, glass, plastic and metal.  In addition, professional and collegiate sports 
facilities anywhere in the state will also have to recycle at least three materials. 
Industries exempt from the new rules include agriculture, construction and 
manufacturing.  
 
Ms. Andrzejewski asked if Ms. Jia has reached out to the schools about recycling at 
least three materials.  As of now the school has been recycling only paper.  If you 
went to the student councils and let the students, be the champions.  
 



 

DRAFT MINUTES 

Ms. Klebba wanted to know if the schools would be able to receive new recycling 
labels for the recycling containers to make people aware of what can go in the 
containers.  
 
Ms. Jai said yes, free labels is part of Anoka County Business Recycling Assistance 
Program.  In addition, the county works with the schools.  
 
Ms. Jia had a PowerPoint presentation on the 2016 tonnage.  Lino Lakes goal was 
2049 tons and we only collect 1628.57 tons, which is 79% of our goal.  This is the 
first time Lino Lakes has not made the goal.   
 
One of the problem is that when people recycling container is full they put the 
recycling into the garbage instead.  Would like to see recycling more often than every 
two weeks. 
 
Organic in 2016 was 183 participants and up to date is now 201 participants. 
 
Ms. Kaufenberg was wondering how we could get the schools involved.   
 
Ms. Jia mentioned that she was over at Columbia Heights school, it is very organized 
with labeled containers, and staff that will watch and make sure the items are going 
into the right container. 
 
Ms. Andrzejewski stated the problem at Centennial is that the schools are short 
staffed so one way for it to work would be to get students involved and staffing the 
recycling lunchroom containers. 
 
Ms. Jia stated Anoka County will pay for the sorting tables and bins but at this time, 
the Centennial School District is not interested. 
 
Ms. Andrzejewski thought a survey it would interesting about recycling and have the 
results available for Earth Day.  Such as if, your recycling container is full do you put 
the recycling in the garbage container.  Are you confused about recycling or what to 
recycling? 
 
Ms. Jia will work on the survey and invited board members to send her suggestions. 
 

C. Community Gardens 
 
Mr. Asleson brought to the board that the American Legion is thinking of making an 
additional parking lot that will encroach into the community garden area. 
 
Suggestion were to see if the soil in the garden area could be improved. 
 
This will be discuss again at another Environmental Board meeting. 
 



 

DRAFT MINUTES 

D. Arbor Day  
 

Mr. Asleson mentioned that Lino Lakes Elementary School would not host Arbor 
Day this year because of the construction going on at the school.  He asked Ms. 
Andrzejewski if Rice Lake Elementary School would be interested and if so he will 
contact her later about Arbor Day.  

 
E. Earth Day Planning  

 
Mr. Asleson said that there is an Earth Day planning meeting on February 16 at 
Wargo Nature Center at 2:30pm. Mr. Asleson wanted to know if Mr. Sullivan was 
interested in going.  
 
The Environmental Board would like to have an Earth Day planning meeting on 
February 22 at 5:30 at City Hall.  
 

F. Meeting Dates for 2017  
 
The meeting dates were discussed and was decided that December 20 would be a 
better meeting date than December 29. 
 
Ms. Kaufenberg motioned the approved of the meeting dates for 2017.  Ms. 
Andrzejewski seconded.  Approved 5-0  
 
Ms. Kaufenberg would like to have the meeting dates for all events for the year. 

      
7. ADJOURNMENT 
  
 Ms. Andrzejewski made a MOTION to adjourn the meeting at 7:51pm.  Ms. Kaufenberg 

supported motion.  Motion carried 5 - 0. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Mary Fogarty 
Office Tech 1 



1 
 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 6A 
 
 
STAFF ORIGINATOR:  Marty Asleson, Environmental Coordinator 
 
MEETING DATE:   February 22, 2017 
 
REQUEST: Conditional Use Permit for Open and Outdoor  

Storage for Bald Eagle Erectors (7309 Lake Drive) 
 
APPLICANT:   Bald Eagle Erectors 
     Attn:  Dave Bice 
     7309 Lake Drive 
     Lino Lakes, MN  55014 
      
OWNER:    Same 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The applicant, Bald Eagle Erectors, owns the 5.45 acre parcel located at 7309 Lake 
Drive.  The request from Bald Eagle Erectors is a request to bring the property into 
conformance with the open and outside storage requirements of the Light Industrial 
zoning district through the issuance of a conditional use permit. .  The applicant primarily 
leases the site to Mobile Mini, a company that leases construction trailers and outside 
storage bins which are stored on site.  The applicant is proposing to pave a portion of 
their property for outdoor storage and install stormwater management upgrades.   
 
Information submitted for City review includes: 

• Survey information from Kaskaskia Engineering Group, LLC., dated 12/06/16 
• Preliminary Plans and Stormwater specs prepared by Larson Engineering 
• Rice Creek Watershed District permit application 
• Land use agreement 
• Project Description prepared by Pulse Land Group, INC. 

 
HISTORY 
 
The property was originally the offices of Glenn Rehbein Excavating dating back to the 
early 1970’s.  The property included offices, shops and exterior storage of equipment and 
materials used in the everyday activities of the business. Tshchida Excavating followed 
Rehbein Companies in 1995.  In 2001, Diamond Dirt purchased the property, occupied 
by Kieger Enterprises, a contracting firm that specialized in natural disaster cleanup.  



2 
 

Beaver Landscaping and StoneWest occupied the site as the principal tenants in the mid 
2000’s.  Since the departure of Beaver Landscaping in 2007 the site has been occupied by 
a number of businesses at any given time. 
 
In February 2000, the City amended the Zoning Ordinance related to outside storage in 
the LI, Light Industrial Zoning District.  While still allowed by conditional use permit, 
outdoor storage accessory to a permitted use, was further restricted by the current 
provisions.  
 
At the time of adoption in February 2000, the use at 7309 Lake Drive did not meet 
requirements of the ordinance.  Specifically, the property did not meet the area, screening 
or the surfacing requirements. Therefore as of February 28, 2000 the property became a 
legal non-conforming use.   The site continued to be used for exterior storage by a 
number of businesses over the next 10 years.  However, records indicate that the storage 
area was reduced to approximately 1.5 acres by 2010, in effect reducing the non-
conformity.   
 
Mini Mobile’s use of the site, starting in 2011, greatly expanded the exterior storage use, 
in violation of the City Zoning Code.  In 2013 the City, Mini Mobile and the previous 
property owner entered into a settlement agreement requiring the site to be brought into 
full compliance related to outdoor storage by December 31, 2017.     
 
The new owner, Bald Eagle Erectors has applied for a Conditional Use Permit for the 
purpose of meeting these requirements. 
 
ZONING ANALYSIS 
 
Requirements for CUP 
In addition to the administrative requirements of a conditional use permit, the following 
specific performance standards of Section 1007.120 (9) (e) must also be met: 
 

(e) Open and outdoor storage (not outdoor sales lots) as an accessory use 
provided that: 

 
1. The designated storage area shall comply with all building setback 

requirements for the district.  Outside storage is prohibited between the 
principal structure and any public right-of-way.   

 
Vacated 4th Avenue shall not be treated as a street, but as a rear yard. 4th Avenue still 
exists as an access ingress/egress for Centennial Middle School and Blue Heron 
Elementary School, and as a public utility corridor. Fifteen (15) feet shall be provided as 
measured from the former property/street right of way and 10 feet from the side yard.  
  

2. The storage area is landscaped and screened from view of adjacent uses 
and public rights-of-way via a fence and greenbelt planting strip, in 
accordance with §1007.043 (17) (f) of this Ordinance.   



3 
 

 
The property must become compliant per section 1007.043 (17) (f). Currently there is a 
6’ chain link fence around the south, west, and north boundaries of the property. An 8’ 
wood fence exists along the east section of the property, abutting Lake Drive, which 
provides screening for the single family homes located to the east. The existing fence 
abutting Lake Drive has landscaping. The 8’ fence is in compliance with the current 
ordinance. The 6’ fence is not in compliance with the current ordinance.  
 

3. The entire storage area is fenced and secured in an appropriate manner. 
 

The site is currently fenced and secured. However staff recommends that the perimeter of 
the storage area be delineated by fence, curbing or other barrier.  

 
4. The storage area is blacktopped or concrete surfaced, unless an 

alternative wear-resistant material is determined by the City Engineer to 
be suitable to control dust and drainage and is specifically approved by 
the City Council. 

 
The open and outdoor storage area will be blacktopped with 5” bituminous pavement 
placed in 2 lifts, with 8”base aggregate on top of existing subgrade soil.  New concrete 
apron will be located along the west side of the existing building and wrap half way 
around the south of the building. The concrete will 6”Portland cement concrete with a 6” 
base aggregate on top of existing subgrade soil. 

 
5. The storage area does not take up parking space or loading space as 

required for conformity to this Ordinance and is not located in the front 
yard. 

 
The storage area is located in the south-west portion of the property. The parking lot is 
located between Lake Drive and the existing building, where storage is not permitted. 
The storage area will not have any negative impacts on the existing parking space.  
 

6. The property shall not abut I-35W or I-35E. 
 
The property does not abut I-35W or I-35E.  
 

7. The ratio of storage area to building footprint shall not exceed 2.5:1. 
 
The site is located on 5.45 acres. The existing building footprint is 27,306 SF x 2.5= 
68,256 SF of maximum outside storage. The proposed plan designates 65,021 SF of 
outside storage which falls into the allowed area.  
 

8. All parking, loading and truck staging activities shall occur on site.  On-
street parking and loading associated with the use is prohibited. 

 
All parking and loading occurs on site.  No off street activities are proposed. 



4 
 

 
9. Storage shall not include material considered hazardous under Federal or 

State Environmental Law.  
 
Mobile Mini is a company that ships outside storage bins and stores them outside as they 
are transported in and out of the property. The storage bins are empty and not used to 
store hazardous materials. Bald Eagle Erectors will be storing job trailers, oxygen and 
acetylene cages, steel racks, utility trailers and wood bundles on site. All items stored on 
site must be stored on designed storage area.   
 
SITE PLAN 
 
Staff has concerns regarding additional storage being placed off delignated paved area 
designated for outdoor storage. Some measures shall be taken to prevent storage being 
placed off defined storage area, either with a fence, curb and gutter, or bollards.  
 
The open area south of the building cannot be used for storage or parking of any kind. 
This area should be returned to natural ground cover and have a control measure to insure 
the space is not used for any other purpose.  
 
Soils 
 
The Site Soils consist of LNA, or Lino A soils.  These soils are fine sandy with a rapid 
permeability.  These soils are good for infiltration. 
 
 
Grading and Stormwater Management. 
 
For Light Industrial Zoning, the maximum impervious surface coverage must be 75% or 
less of the total lot area.  The site design meets that.    
 
New impervious area surface waters  flow to the proposed infiltration basin.  Rice creek 
watershed, and our city engineers will verify that the pond is adequate size for the newly 
created impervious.   
 
Landscape 
 
Open Space other than impervious south of the building 
 
The open area south of the building cannot be used for storage or parking of any kind. 
This area should be returned to natural ground cover and have a control measure to insure 
the space is not used for any other purpose. 
 

• A low profile native seed mix should be planted in this area or turf with an 
irrigation system. 

 



5 
 

Additionally, some measures shall be taken to prevent storage being placed off defined 
storage area, either with a fence, curb and gutter, or bollards.  
 
 
Infiltration Pond/Landscaping 
 

• The pond area subject to periodic wetness should have a mesic prairie mix 
such as MNDOT 35-641 

• Above the area of the pond and extending out into the buffering areas, a dry 
prairie mix such as MNDOT 35-621 should be used. 

• Trees should not be lined up but scattered in the pond area.  Evergreens 
should not be used.  A good substitute would be Swamp White Oak.   

• Native shrubs should be used for the proposed shrubs.  Red twig dogwood 
and yellow twig dogwood would be a good substitute. 

• Screening along 4th avenue has to be an 8 foot 100 % screen fence, plus 
more plants will be needed.  A design must be submitted to meet the zoning 
code 

• The open area south of the building cannot be used for storage or parking of any 
kind. This area should be returned to natural ground cover and have a control 
measure to insure the space is not used for any other purpose.  A low profile 
native seed mix should be planted in this area or turf with an irrigation system. 

 
Rare and Unique Environmental Features 
 
There are no Rare and /or unique features on this site, including the Blanding’s Turtle 
Model of Lino Lakes. 
 
Drinking Water Service Management Area (DWSMA)/Aquafur Vulnerability 
 
The site does not fall into the DWSMA Area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend project approval with staff and Environmental Board recommendations. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Bald Eagle Erectors Location and Design Features 
2. Bald Eagle Erectors Civil Plans 

 
  
 













 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL BOARD 
AGENDA ITEM 5C 

 
 
STAFF ORIGINATOR: Marty Asleson 

ENV. BD. MEETING DATE: February 17, 2017 

REQUEST: Discussion Item – Event Dates for 2017 
 
APPLICANT: Not applicable 

 
REVIEW DEADLINE: Not applicable 

 
BACKGROUND 

 

Environmental Board takes part in other community events and those events are listed 
below for 2017: 

 
February 25, Sat.       Blue Heron work  9:00am   Peltier Island 
April 22, Sat.  Earth Day    12:30 – 2:30pm Wargo Nature Ct 
April 28, Friday Arbor Day   ?   Rice Lake Elem 
May 6, Sat.  Annual City Recycling   9am-2pm  1189 Main St 
August 19, Sat. Blue Heron Parade  11am ?   Target Pk Lot 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 

None 
 
 


	EB Agenda January 25, 2017 
	AGENDA
	A.  Paul Gardner, free curbside clothing & home goods recycling program
	B.  Jon Klapperich (Waste Wise) and Amy Ulbricht (Anoka County), Business Recycling in Lino Lakes


	1-25-17 Minute DRAFT
	EB.2.22.2017.Item 5A Bald Eagle Erectors
	Bald Eagle Erectors Location and Design features
	Bald Eagle Erectors Civil Plans
	2017 event dates memo
	ENVIRONMENTAL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 5C
	BACKGROUND
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENTS


